
 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  

OF THE 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

  

Austin Benazza         ) 

    Plaintiff,         ) 

           ) 

 v.            ) Civil Action  

           ) 

Officer Chance Badertscher and        ) 

Kenilworth Police Department        ) 

  Defendant.         ) 

 

COMPLAINT 

  

Jurisdiction and Venue  

 

1. Plaintiff, Austin Bennaza and Defendants, Chance Badertscher and Kenilworth Police 

Department are citizens of the State of Illinois. 

 

2. The Court has Federal Jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. §1331, because the claim arises under 

Federal Statute, 42 U.S.C. § 1983 in violation of the 4
th

 Amendment of the Constitution of the 

United States.  

 

3. The court has Venue under 28 U.S.C. §1391, because substantial part of the events of the 

claim occurred in Illinois.   

 

FACTS 

 

4. On or around September 24, 2012, Chance  Bennaza (“ Mr. Bennaza”) was driving his father's 

jaguar North  on winding Sheridan Rd.,  

 

5. It was a raining and slippery night. 

 

6. Chance Badertscher ("the Officer"), a police officer acting in his full capacity as an agent of 

the Kenilworth Police Department, pulled over Mr. Bennaza near the intersection of Sheridan 

Rd. and Kenilworth Rd.  

 

7. The Officer displayed aggression from the moment he stepped out of his vehicle by slamming 

the door. 

 



8. The Officer informed Mr. Bennaza that he was pulled over for swerving because he crossed 

the yellow line.  

 

9. The Officer then requested licenses and registration. 

 

10. Mr. Benazza cooperatively began searching for the requested documents. 

 

11. The Officer smelled alcohol and demanded for Mr. Bennaza to step out of the car.  

 

12. Mr. Benazza stepped out of the car.  

 

13. The Officer continued to be rude and aggressive throughout the encounter and while Mr. 

Bennaza was searching for his driver’s license in his wallet, the Officer slapped Mr. Bennaza’s 

hand and grabbed the wallet.  

 

14. While the Officer was grabbing the wallet the flashlight that he was holding above his head 

moved forward. 

 

15. Mr. Bennaza believed he would be struck with the heavy police flash light; thus, began to 

escape.   

 

16. As Mr. Bennaza was trying to escape he tripped on the car and fell to the ground, which 

resulted in an injured ankle, bruised ribs and a concussion.  

 

17. Mr. Bennaza woke up in the hospital where he received his traffic citation for swerving and 

obstruction of justice.   

 

18. Mr. Bennaza did not receive citation for DUI even though medical records with his alcohol 

level were available to be subpoenaed by the Officer. 

 

Count 1.  Deprivation of Civil Rights 

 

19. The allegations of paragraph 4-13 are incorporated herein as though full set forth. 

 

20. The Officer deprived Mr. Bennaza of his civil rights, because he snatched Mr. Bennaza’s 

wallet without probable cause for search and seizure, which violated the 4
th

 Amendment of the 

Constitution of the United States.  

 

Count 3.  Battery  

 

19.  The allegations of paragraph 4-18 are incorporated herein as though full set forth.  

 

20.  The Officer committed battery by purposefully slapping Mr. Bennaza’s hand and grabbing 

his wallet.  

 

Count 2. Assault  



 

21.  The allegations of paragraph 4-18 are incorporated herein as though full set forth. 

 

22.   The Officer’s purposeful slapping of Mr. Bennaza’s hand and grabbing of the wallet caused 

the Officer’s flash light to come forward resulting in Mr. Bennaza believed that he was about to 

be struck by the flash light. 

 

23. Mr. Bennanza’s belief of immediate harm caused him to try and escape, which resulted in 

him tripping on his car and suffering serious injuries.  

 

Relief 

 

24. Mr. Bennaza seeks compensatory and punitive damages from Defendants, Officer Chance 

Badertscher and Kenilworth Police Department, for violation of his Civil Rights, Assault and 

Battery.   


